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TO:		Mayor Chuck Barney
		Members of the City Council

FROM:	Lance Meyer, P.E., City Engineer
DATE:		3/21/18
[bookmark: _GoBack]SUBJECT: 	31ST AVE SE RECONSTRUCTION BROADWAY TO 13TH ST SE ENGINEERING SELECTION (4331)
	

I. RECOMMENDED ACTION
1. Recommend council select Apex Engineering Group to perform all consulting engineering for this project. 
2. Recommend council authorize the City Engineer to negotiate a scope and fee for services. 
3. Recommend council authorize the Mayor to sign the contract. 
4. Recommend council pass a resolution authorizing the use of general obligation bonds for the project’s cost share. 

II. DEPARTMENT CONTACT PERSONS

	Lance Meyer, City Engineer				857-4100
	Dave Wicke, Project Manager		 		857-4100

III. DESCRIPTION

A. Background
31st Ave SE from Broadway to 13th St has been slowly improved over the decades as development in southeast Minot has occurred. The roadway was constructed as a rural section roadway with a minimal pavement section and poor drainage. Over the past several years, the corridor has experienced a rapid deterioration of pavement condition as traffic volumes have increased. City staff recommended to council that the 31st Ave corridor be placed in the North Dakota Department of Transportation’s (NDDOT) Urban Road Program (URP). The project was submitted in 2015 and is now in the program for a 2020 construction start. 

The corridor is classified as a minor arterial and is listed in the city’s urban road network. 2015 traffic counts vary between 2,625 on the east end to 6,740 on the west end at Broadway.

B. Proposed Project
Because the project is about two years away from construction, now is the time to start the necessary environmental clearance, preliminary, and design engineering for this project. Staff has programmed $500,000 in the capital improvements plan to start the engineering work. 

At this time, staff is looking to urbanize this corridor to a 3 lane concrete urban arterial. A trunk storm sewer network will have to be designed and constructed along with the new pavement section. New LED street lighting and a new concrete shared use path will be constructed as well. The corridor will look very similar to the newly constructed 37th Ave SE, which was funded by the same NDDOT program. 

In 2015, an estimated project construction cost was developed at $8.62 million of which $6.934 million will be covered with a federal cost share. We estimate the City’s construction cost share to be $1.685 million plus engineering and right of way costs. 

A critical point for council consideration is that the City builds a balance in our URP account at the NDDOT each year. In 2020, our federal account balance is estimated to be $6.444 million, which is about $500,000 less than anticipated. At the end of 2020, the federal transportation program has a rescission built into the bill which rescinds all funding not obligated. Meaning, if we do not bid the project by end of federal fiscal year 2020, the City will lose over $6 million for this project. We will then start over building up our account until the project can be programmed. The condition of 31st Ave SE is in such poor condition; we would have to build the project on our own at some point without federal funding. That will be too large of a burden on City resources if the federal funding is lost. 

C. Consultant Selection
Apex Engineering Group (Apex) was selected using a competitive qualifications based selection. A committee consisting of Alderman Olson, the Assistant NDDOT District Engineer, Assistant City Engineer, Assistant Director of Public Works, and the Storm Water Engineer ranked written proposals from six firms. A short list of three firms was selected for the interview round of the selection process. The committee interviewed the three firms during an interview and selected Apex as the most qualified firm to perform the scope of services. 

Firm Ranking:
1. Apex Engineering Group
2. KLJ
3. Houston Engineering 

IV. IMPACT:

A. Strategic Impact:
31st Ave is a strategic corridor for the City. It is classified as a minor arterial, which means the road is designated to carry a large volume of traffic to and from other arterials. 31st Ave is the last major roadway improvement planned in southeast Minot in developing areas. 

B. Service/Delivery Impact: 
During construction, access to several cul-de-sacs will be challenging and likely temporary access roads will have to be constructed to maintain access. 

C. Fiscal Impact:
.
	Project Costs
	Estimated Construction Cost			$7,838,000
	10% Contingency				$  783,000
	Engineering					$1,200,000
	Right of Way/Easements			$  200,000
	Total						$10,021,000

The costs above are purely estimates at this time with only high-level engineering completed. With an estimated $6.444 million available in federal funds, the City’s cost share will be approximately $3.58 million. The City has traditionally funded federal cost share on arterial roadways with general obligation bonds. That type of funding is currently programmed in future capital improvement plans. The numbers will be refined as engineering work completed on the project. The initial engineering costs, estimated to be $500,000 will be paid with State Oil & Gas funds, with the remainder being general obligation bonds. 

V. ALTERNATIVES

Alt 1.	The Council could select another firm from the interview round of the process. A finding would have to be made as to why the other firm is more qualified. 

Alt 2. 	The Council could cancel the project and not select an engineering firm. 


VI. TIME CONSTRAINTS

Once council proceeds with selecting an engineering firm, the work will begin to design the project. 

VII. LIST OF ATTACHMENTS

A. Reimbursement Resolution 
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